

Independent research & further reading

Guest: Erica Komisar

Disclaimer 1: The literature presented here, directly (or as closely as possible), looks at statements made by the guest. In order to fully understand each topic mentioned, an extensive literature review (beyond the scope of this document) would be required.

Disclaimer 2: The information provided in this podcast and any associated materials is not intended to replace professional medical advice. For any medical concerns, it is essential to consult a qualified health professional.

Contents

Critical periods of brain development	3
Mental illness in children	3
Skin-to-skin contact between infant and mother	3
Mothers versus fathers roles in mammals	4
Mother's role with infants	5
Right hemisphere of the brain in infants	6
Father versus mother: gender roles in infants	6
Single mothers	8
Attachment styles in infants: how it affects their lives later on	9
Continuity of attachment disorders	10
Secure attachment	11
Maternal depletion syndrome	11
Fertility rates	11
Oocyte cryopreservation via vitrification, commonly known as freezing of eggs	12
Fathers role in dealing with separation	12
The rhesus monkey study: skin-to-skin	13
Parental/maternity leave	13

Stability of attachment styles and mental disorders	14
Prevalence of sleep aids in America	14
Mental health of children and young adults	15
Religious service attendance and depression	15
Nihilism and depression	16
Raising a child with healthy self-esteem	16
Generational expression: narcissism	16
ADHD diagnosis and prescriptions	17
Genetic precursors to mental disorders	17
ADHD and sensitivity to stress	18
Side effects of medication for ADHD	18
Daycare	19
Father's sensitivity	20
Same-sex parenting	21
Children socialising before the age of three	21
Abusive fathers	22
Trends in male sexual activity	22
Mental health of young men	22
Relationship preference and education level	23
Testosterone levels during fatherhood	23
Increased dopamine sensitivity in adolescents	24
References	25

Critical periods of brain development

"for children to be mentally healthy in the future, you have to be physically and emotionally present for them throughout childhood, but particularly in the two critical periods of brain development, which are zero to three and nine to 25 which is adolescents."

The period from birth to age three is marked by rapid brain growth and structural changes that are foundational for later cognitive, motor, and social development. These changes are influenced by both biological and environmental factors, highlighting the importance of early life experiences in shaping developmental outcomes.

References 1-5.

Mental illness in children

"In America, one in five children will not leave childhood without breaking down at some point, without developing a serious mental illness, anxiety, depression, ADHD, behavioral problems, suicidal thoughts"

Around 20% (1 in 5) of children in the United States are affected by mental disorders each year (6-8). Approximately 10% of children aged 5-16 years have a clinically diagnosable mental health problem in the United Kingdom (9, 10). Some studies suggest that the prevalence might be higher, with reports indicating that two in five young people score above thresholds for emotional, conduct, or hyperactivity problems (11, 12).

Skin-to-skin contact between infant and mother

"from an evolutionary perspective, babies have always needed the physical skin-to-skin contact with their mothers for the first year."

Skin-to-skin contact helps regulate stress in infants by influencing biological indicators such as the autonomic nervous system, heart rate variability, cortisol, and oxytocin levels. This regulation is crucial for the infant's emotional and physiological stability (13). Interestingly, it has been reported that in kangaroos, skin-to-skin contact is effective in maintaining infants' body temperature.

improving oxygen saturation and stabilising heart rates, which are critical for the newborn's adaptation to extrauterine life (14).

"Most parts of the world babies are worn on their mother's bodies because mothers perform a number of really important functions for babies that are biological functions based on our evolutionary need to provide our babies with what we call attachment security."

Babywearing is a beneficial practice that supports secure attachment and socio-emotional development in infants. It enhances maternal responsiveness and provides a calming effect, which is crucial for the well-being of both mother and child. These benefits highlight the importance of physical contact in early development and suggest that babywearing can be a valuable tool in parenting practices.

References 15-19.

Mothers versus fathers roles in mammals

"mothers and fathers are interchangeable, but actually, from an evolutionary perspective, as mammals, they're not interchangeable. They serve different functions, and those behaviors are connected to nurturing hormones"

In mammals, mothers and fathers have evolved distinct but complementary roles in caregiving, driven by hormonal and neurobiological mechanisms. Mothers are primarily influenced by pregnancy-related hormones, while fathers undergo hormonal changes that support their involvement in parenting, albeit to a lesser extent. More specifically, maternal behaviour in mammals is heavily influenced by hormones such as oxytocin and prolactin, which are crucial for maternal care behaviours like nursing and grooming (20-22). Fathers experience hormonal shifts, including changes in testosterone and oxytocin, which may support caregiving behaviours, although these changes are more variable and less understood than in mothers (23, 24). While only a small percentage of mammalian species exhibit paternal caregiving, those that do show adaptations in neural and hormonal systems to support this role (23, 24).

Mother's role with infants

"So mothers are really important for what we call sensitive, empathic, nurturing. When children are infants and toddlers, that means that when children are in distress, mothers soothe babies and therefore regulate their emotions from moment to moment. Every time a mother soothes a baby with skin to skin contact and eye contact and the soothing tone of her voice, she's leaning into that baby's pain, and she is regulating that baby's emotions"

A mother's attentive and nurturing care in the first three years is crucial for shaping her child's foundational neural and physiological systems, helping to protect against the cognitive effects of adversity (25).

Cortisol and oxytocin

"the other thing that's important that mothers do is they buffer babies from stress by wearing them on their body for the first year, and then by being as present as possible for three years. They actually protect babies brains from cortisol, the stress hormone. So there is a hormone called oxytocin. It's the love hormone, and it is protective against cortisol. The more a mother nurtures with sensitive, empathic, nurturing. Meaning, when the baby cries, the mother goes, Oh, sweetheart, you know, let me see the boo boo. Let me kiss the Boo Boo that actually raises the oxytocin in the baby's brain, which then protects the baby from cortisol"

Oxytocin, a key hormone in maternal bonding, enhances sensitive caregiving, strengthening a mother's ability to respond to her child's needs with warmth and emotional connection. Oxytocin enhances mother-infant bonding, which is associated with reduced stress and improved emotional responses. This bonding is facilitated by increased oxytocin levels during interactions such as breastfeeding and skin-to-skin contact, which also help lower cortisol levels.

Neural systems activated by child-related cues enable mothers to recognise and respond effectively to their children's signals, particularly in times of distress. A mother's responsiveness to infant distress not only provides immediate comfort but also plays a vital role in fostering her child's capacity for empathy, shaping their ability to express concern for others. This deep emotional connection between mother and child is further reflected in how children absorb empathic stress. When they witness their mother in distress, they experience emotional stress themselves, highlighting the profound influence a mother's well-being has on her child's emotional development.

Right hemisphere of the brain in infants

"So by three years of age, 85% of the right brain is developed"

By age three, the right hemisphere shows dominance, particularly in posterior associative areas, before shifting to left hemisphere dominance after age three. Despite right hemisphere dominance, left hemisphere specialisation for speech functions is evident by age three. The brain of a three-year-old is remarkably active, with synaptic connections forming rapidly in response to environmental stimuli and experiences.

References 35, 36.

Note: No particular study was found to report an 85% development rate for the right hemisphere of the brain by age three. By age 3, a child's brain reaches approximately 80% of its adult volume. The brain experiences significant growth during the first three years, with intracranial volumes increasing rapidly, especially in the first two years. This period is marked by growth spurts in the whole brain and specific regions like the frontal and temporal lobes.

References 37-39.

Father versus mother: gender roles in infants

"When fathers produce oxytocin, it comes from a different part of their brain, and it makes them more what we call playful, tactile stimulators of babies. What does that sound like to you? Playful, tactful stimulators of babies, throwing the baby up in the air and tickling the baby and running after the baby and roughhousing and so that's important for a variety of reasons. First, it encourages things like exploration and risk-taking. It encourages separation. And fathers do this really important thing, which is they help the baby to learn to regulate certain emotions. So mothers help to regulate sadness, fear, distress. Fathers help to regulate excitement and aggression."

Oxytocin and vasopressin

Studies on how parents' brains respond to infant stimuli show both similarities and differences between mothers and fathers. Both parents activate brain networks linked to empathy and interpreting infant cues. However, mothers tend to show stronger activation in areas associated with emotional processing, such as the amygdala, while fathers exhibit greater activation in regions related to social cognition. These differences are influenced by hormones, with oxytocin playing a key role in mothers and vasopressin in fathers. Vasopressin plays a significant role in regulating aggressive behaviour across various species. In mammals, vasopressin enhances aggression and is linked to the serotonin system, providing a mechanism for modulating aggressive responses.

Additionally, genetic variations in receptors for oxytocin and vasopressin are associated with distinct activation patterns in the prefrontal cortex during parent-child interactions. Interestingly, fathers who take on primary caregiving roles display brain activity patterns more similar to those of mothers, suggesting that caregiving experiences can lead to brain plasticity. Moreover, levels of oxytocin in fathers are linked to increased activation in the left prefrontal cortex during interactions with their infants, while maternal oxytocin is associated with right-hemispheric activation.

References 40-44.

Exploration and risk-taking

Fathers are often viewed as key facilitators of exploration and risk-taking in children. They typically engage in activities that excite and challenge their children, encouraging bravery and self-reliance in unfamiliar situations. This dynamic is part of what is known as the "father-child activation relationship," which contrasts with the mother-child attachment relationship, which centres on comfort and security. In addition, fathers value providing opportunities for risk-taking, recognising the positive aspects of minor injuries as part of learning and development.

References 45-47.

Aggression regulation

Fathers play a vital role in their children's emotional and behavioural development, particularly in regulating aggression. Their parenting style, level of control, and involvement in play can either help reduce or contribute to aggressive behaviours. Specifically, harsh parenting by fathers is linked to increased aggression in children, with a more pronounced effect on sons than daughters. This

highlights the significant impact fathers' parenting styles can have on child aggression potentially more so than mothers' harsh parenting (48). Additionally, fathers with strong gender-role stereotypes often apply more physical control with boys, which can lead to increased aggression (49).

References 48, 49.

Infant crying: gender differences

"There was a study that was done where mothers and fathers lay in bed and the baby cries. It was out of the UK. This study, the baby cries, and the father sleep through the baby's distress cries, but the mothers wake up right away, okay, but with the rustling of leaves outside the window, the mothers sleep through it, and the fathers wake up right away, because the fathers are attuned to predatorial threat, so our nurturing hormones make us different."

Research on how parents respond to infant cries reveals a complex interplay between gender, hormonal influences, and experience. Rather than being solely driven by an innate maternal instinct, a father's ability to recognise and respond to their baby's cries is largely shaped by experience (50). While some research indicates that women may be slightly more attuned to softer cries, this sensitivity does not fully account for the unequal division of nighttime caregiving (51). Hormones also play a role, with higher testosterone levels in men linked to less nurturing behaviours but potentially greater vigilance toward external threats (52). In contrast, fathers with lower testosterone and elevated prolactin levels tend to show more empathy and attentiveness to infant distress (53). These findings underscore the influence of both biological and experiential factors in shaping parental responses, challenging oversimplified ideas about gendered caregiving instincts.

Single mothers

"when there are single mothers raising children without a father, often little. Boys develop behavioral problems"

Research suggests that boys raised in single-mother families may face increased risks of behavioural problems compared to those in two-parent households (54, 55). However, these risks can be mitigated by structured family environments, effective disciplinary strategies, and positive male involvement (54). Paternal alcoholism, rather than absence, appears to be a stronger predictor of persistent behavioural issues in boys, including physical aggression, opposition, and hyperactivity

(56). Importantly, it seems the absence of a father from infancy does not necessarily lead to negative consequences for children's social and emotional development (57).

Attachment styles in infants: how it affects their lives later on

Avoidant

"Really can't tolerate that kind of separation when a parent comes when the primary attachment figure, usually the mother comes home and the baby turns away from you and turns toward the babysitter, or just turns away, that baby has the beginning of what's called an avoidant attachment disorder. Now that's correlated later on with things like depression and difficulty forming attachments later on"

Avoidant attachment in children is linked to decreased support-seeking behaviour during stress, which can lead to increased depressive symptoms over time (58, 59).

Ambivalent/anxious attachment

"the next kind of attachment disorder is called an ambivalent attachment disorder. And the mother then comes home, and the baby clings to the mother for dear life, because the internal voice, and that baby is my mommy's going to leave me again, so I have to hold on to her now that baby is fractious and can't be soothed and will not let go of that Mother, you know, holding on for dear life, what I call like the rhesus monkeys did to the wire cages, right? And that's correlated later on with anxiety in youth"

A meta-analysis found that ambivalent attachment showed the strongest association with anxiety, particularly during adolescence (60). Anxious-ambivalent attachment styles were found to mediate the relationship between emotional neglect in childhood and anxiety disorders in young adulthood (61). A longitudinal study confirmed that anxious/resistant attachment in infancy predicted anxiety disorders in adolescence, even when controlling for maternal anxiety and infant temperament (62).

Disorganised attachment disorder

"Disorganized attachment disorder is the hardest to treat, because the baby has no strategy. So the baby cycles through many strategies. The baby will go from clinging to avoiding to being enraged and even to slapping or hitting the mother and then cycling through again, and that baby that develops a disorganized attachment disorder, those are more those babies. It's correlated later with borderline personality disorder, and we're seeing a huge rise in borderline personality disorders, and those are the kids who are cutting themselves, who are trying to commit suicide, you know."

A disorganised attachment pattern is characterised by an approach-avoidance dilemma where caregivers are simultaneously a source of threat and security (63, 64). Maternal withdrawal in infancy and disorganised controlling child behaviour at age 8 have been identified as significant predictors of both borderline symptoms and suicidality/self-injury in late adolescence (65).

"that's disorganised. Yeah. They have a very hard time forming relationships, holding on to relationships? Yeah, I would say it's, it's, they're the most complicated to treat, and they're also the most complicated in terms of, you know, being able to have successful relationships in the future"

Individuals with disorganised attachment may experience lapses in self-regulation during high-stress interpersonal situations, potentially leading to violent or frightening experiences that disrupt close relationships (66). Longitudinal studies have shown that infant attachment disorganisation correlates with relationship quality issues, behaviour problems, and psychopathology in childhood and adolescence (67).

Continuity of attachment disorders

"attachment disorders are pathological defenses, meaning they don't usually last a lifetime"

Attachment disorders can have long-lasting effects, but they are not always permanent. With early intervention and positive life changes, attachment patterns can shift over time. The stability of these styles depend on early experiences, major life events, and ongoing psychological and social influences.

Reference 68.

Secure attachment

"secure people with secure attachment will be drawn to healthy, reciprocal, loving, deep connections, because they've had a deep and loving connection with their mother"

Research suggests that secure attachment in early childhood, particularly with mothers, is associated with positive outcomes in adult relationships and overall well-being. Securely attached individuals demonstrate higher levels of trust, closeness, and intimacy in their romantic relationships (69). Interestingly, neuroimaging studies have found that secure attachment is related to increased white matter integrity in specific brain regions, suggesting a biological basis for attachment security (70).

Maternal depletion syndrome

"there's something in the developing world called maternal depletion syndrome, which is that mothers can actually die in the developing world of having too many children in too short a period of time, they get depleted physically, but they also get depleted emotionally."

Maternal depletion syndrome refers to the potential negative health effects on mothers and infants due to frequent pregnancies and inadequate nutrition (71). However, the existence of MDS is controversial (72). Some studies suggest that socioeconomic factors and maternal work may be more significant determinants of nutritional status than reproductive history (72). A different definition of MDS has been proposed, focusing on changes in maternal nutritional status over one reproductive cycle and considering initial nutritional status (73).

Fertility rates

"fertility rates are plummeting across Western Europe"

Recent studies indicate a global decline in fertility rates, with most developed countries falling below replacement levels (74, 75).

Oocyte cryopreservation via vitrification, commonly known as freezing of eggs

"when you freeze eggs, it's not a guarantee of fertility. It's not a guarantee that those eggs will turn into embryos"

Oocyte cryopreservation via vitrification has become an increasingly common strategy for fertility preservation, offering similar results to fresh oocytes. While it provides hope for women to extend their reproductive options, it does not guarantee fertility or successful embryo development (76). The procedure is most effective for women under 35, with better outcomes when freezing at least 8-10 oocytes, though 20 is deemed optimal (77). Age-related decline in ovarian reserve and oocyte quality has led to increased involuntary childlessness, making egg freezing an attractive option for women approaching their late thirties (78). However, it's crucial to inform women about their specific probabilities based on age at vitrification, emphasising that while egg freezing increases the possibility of having a biological child in the future, it does not guarantee success.

Fathers role in dealing with separation

"when fathers aren't around in those days, when children are starting to explore the world, those children have a harder time separating from mothers"

Father-infant interactions reduce separation anxiety and enhance ego autonomy, differentiation, and individuation, though there is a paucity of research regarding fathers role in helping infants with separation (79).

The rhesus monkey study: skin-to-skin

"they took these baby rhesus monkeys, and they they let some be with the mothers, and the mothers nurtured those babies, and those babies became healthily attached and secure, and those were The healthy, emotionally healthy babies. Then they gave another subset of monkeys a wire mother covered with a piece of cloth or fur or something, and those babies became very neurotic, but at least they were clinging. They became like the ambivalent attachment babies, because there was no response from the mother, but at least they were holding on to this mother, and then they gave, and these babies became very neurotic, and then they gave the subset of babies nothing, and those babies literally lost their minds."

Reference 80.

"One was Michael Meaney study. He did, a study on licking and grooming animals who lick and groom their young meaning, are nurturing skin to skin. Lick and groom in human terms that would be holding, touching, loving, skin to skin, those if a mother licked and groomed her young, that baby would become more resilient to stress in the future, the babies who were not licked and groomed by their mothers become became less."

References 81, 82.

Parental/maternity leave

"in Hungary, they have three years. Slovenia, Slovakia, Estonia has three years. Hungary, I think, has two years of paid leave. Sweden, I have some issues with Sweden, but Sweden has 14 months"

- Hungary (83)
- Sweden (84)

Stability of attachment styles and mental disorders

"Research shows that children who are insecurely attached at 12 months of age, 20 years later, are insecure. 80% of them are insecurely attached and suffer from mental disorders."

Stability of attachment styles

A significant portion of individuals seem to maintain their attachment style from infancy into adulthood. One study found that 72% of infants retained their secure or insecure attachment classification into early adulthood. However, a different study reported no continuity from 1 to 18 years (87) It's important to note that negative life events can lead to changes in attachment security (85, 86). A meta-analysis found medium-sized stability in attachment security over time but noted that stability decreases over longer intervals, particularly when longer than 15 years (88). In conclusion, the current research therefore suggests that, while attachment patterns can remain stable, they are also susceptible to environmental influences and may impact adult emotional regulation and adjustment.

<u>Insecure attachment style and mental illness</u>

Research consistently shows a high prevalence of insecure attachment styles among those with mental health disorders. A significant portion of people with conditions such as psychosis, bipolar disorder, depression, and schizophrenia exhibit insecure attachment, with rates higher than those found in the general population (89). Insecure attachment has also been linked to an increased likelihood of suicidal ideation, suicide attempts, and other mental health challenges (90). These findings suggest that insecure attachment may act as a risk factor for mental health disorders, highlighting the need for further investigation into its role in the development and treatment of such conditions.

Prevalence of sleep aids in America

"about 50% of Americans, the figure might be a little lower, but not much lower, are on some kind of sleep aid."

While the National Sleep Foundation reports that 48% of Americans experience nightly insomnia symptoms (with higher rates among females and older adults) (91), a survey of adults aged 65-80 found that 35.4% used some form of sleep aid, with over-the-counter products being the most

common (92). Another study found that 4% of U.S. adults aged 20 and over used prescription sleep aids in the past month (93).

Mental health of children and young adults

"20% of children aged 12 to 17 in the US reported at least one major depressive episode. 2021 in the US, the rate of depression amongst three to 17 year olds has increased from has increased by 30% Yeah, yeah. Recently and in the US, antidepressant prescriptions for young adults and teens have risen by nearly 65% since 2020 and I'll put some of these graphs on the screen for anybody to see, yeah, children who reported attending a religious service, however, yeah, at least once per week had a lower risk of to play."

- A comprehensive analysis of federal data systems from 2013-2019 revealed that 20.9% of children aged 12-17 had experienced a major depressive episode (94).
- Antidepressant prescriptions for U.S. adolescents and young adults rose by 66.3% between 2016 and 2022, with the rate of increase accelerating by 63.5% following the COVID-19 outbreak (95).

Religious service attendance and depression

Some studies indicate that frequent religious participation may offer protection against depression, while others point to reverse causality, where early-onset depression leads to reduced religious involvement, particularly among women. However, the connection between religiosity and depression is multifaceted, as different aspects of spiritual well-being may influence depression risk in varying ways.

References 96-98.

Nihilism and depression

"nihilism, which is the belief in nothing, does nothing for mental health that human beings have to live with."

Meaninglessness, a significant threat in modern times, is associated with depression and suicide (99). A longitudinal analysis indicated that decreases in existential meaning lead to increases in depressive symptoms, suggesting a unidirectional influence (100).

Raising a child with healthy self-esteem

"the best way to raise a child with healthy self esteem is to admire them for their strengths, not to admire them for things that aren't their strengths"

Research suggests that while nurturing children's self-esteem is important, the way parents approach it matters. Inflated or person-focused praise—emphasising personal traits rather than effort—can have unintended consequences, particularly for children with low self-esteem. It may lead to feelings of shame after failure and, in some cases, contribute to narcissistic tendencies. Instead, experts recommend offering realistic feedback, emphasising growth, and providing unconditional support. Process praise, which highlights effort and behaviour rather than inherent qualities, is generally more effective in fostering resilience and healthy self-esteem.

References 101, 102.

Generational expression: narcissism

"generational expression, narcissistic parents are more likely to produce narcissistic children"

Children's narcissistic traits are linked to parental narcissism, with overvaluation—especially by fathers—playing a partial role in this connection. The intergenerational transmission of narcissism may occur through differential pathways for mothers and fathers. While positive parenting is generally associated with healthy narcissistic tendencies, narcissistic parenting can lead to hidden forms of abuse, including manipulation, triangulation, and isolation.

References 103-105.

ADHD diagnosis and prescriptions

"the shocking rise in diagnosis and prescriptions over the last 10 years between 2020 and 2018 ADHD diagnosis in the UK rose approximately 20 fold. Yes among boys aged 10 to 16, diagnosis increased for. 1% roughly to about 3.5% in 2018 and in men aged 18 to 29 there was a nearly 50 fold increase in ADHD prescriptions during the same period. And the same applies to the United States, where an estimated 15.5 million adults in the US have been diagnosed with ADHD. Approximately one in nine US children have been diagnosed with ADHD at some point, with 10.5% having a current diagnosis"

References 106-109.

Genetic precursors to mental disorders

"there is no genetic precursor to mental illness, there is no genetic precursor to ADHD, there is no genetic precursor to depression and no genetic precursor to anxiety"

<u>ADHD</u>

ADHD is strongly influenced by genetics, with a significant role in its development. More specifically, recent Genome-Wide Association Studies have identified multiple genetic loci associated with ADHD. A significant study identified 12 genome-wide significant loci, while another more extensive analysis found 27 loci, implicating various neurodevelopmental pathways and brain-expressed genes.

In children, twin studies show ADHD is highly heritable, with estimates around 70% to 80%. In adults, the heritability drops to about 30% to 40%. This difference is mostly because of variations in how ADHD is reported—adults tend to self-report, while teachers and parents provide feedback for children. However, when combining multiple sources of data, the heritability in adults can actually match that seen in kids.

References 110-117.

Depression

Research indicates that depression has a significant genetic component, with multiple genes involved in its etiology. However, gene-environment interactions are likely important in depression development. Despite progress, the genetic basis of depression remains complex and not fully understood, with multiple genetic factors interacting with environmental influences to confer risk.

References 118-125.

Anxiety

Anxiety disorders have a substantial genetic component, with common genetic variations accounting for a significant portion of the genetic architecture underlying these disorders. Anxiety is influenced by interactions between genetic predispositions and environmental factors, such as early-life stress and trauma, which can induce lasting changes in brain structure and function.

References 126-131.

ADHD and sensitivity to stress

"Someone with ADHD is more sensitive to stress"

Research indicates that adults with ADHD exhibit increased sensitivity to stress compared to healthy controls (132-134).

Side effects of medication for ADHD

"It's a stimulant. And so what stimulants do is they cause they can cause great anxiety. They can cause panic attacks. In adolescence, they can cause growth issues"

<u>Anxiety</u>

In a meta-analysis, the authors found that ADHD medications did not significantly affect anxiety or depression symptoms in children and adolescents. However, they reported that the number of trials that reported anxiety and/or depression as an outcome or side effect was too limited and more research is needed (135). A recent review also concluded there is a lack of research in this field (136).

It is important to note, though, that there are also studies showing that psychostimulants used to treat ADHD may cause anxiety (137).

Growth rates

Studies indicate that high doses of stimulants over extended periods can lead to measurable effects on growth rates in school-age children with ADHD. The mechanism behind this growth attenuation may involve increased dopamine and noradrenaline levels inhibiting the secretion of growth hormone and related hormones. Clinicians should be aware of these potential effects and carefully monitor growth in children receiving stimulant treatment, considering the balance between improved learning and social function against possible growth suppression.

References 138-141.

"On this point of stress, living with ADHD, looking at some research from the injury.com Research Education Group. It says that children with an ACE score, which is the trauma score, where I think it goes up to 10 different questions, with an ACE score of four or more, so four experiences of trauma or more, have maybe four times, which is 400% more chance of having parent reported ADHD compared to children with no aces. Yeah, and some of the factors that have big impact as social socio economic hardship increases your probability of having ADHD by 40% parental divorce by 35% familial mental illness or parent having a mental illness increases up to almost 60% 55% I believe, and neighborhood violence, almost 50% legal incarceration. So if a parent goes to prison, then that increases your probability of ADHD by about 40% as well. And that's published by the think it's the New England, yeah, or the National Library of Medicine, center of biological information,"

Multiple studies have found that children exposed to four or more ACEs have significantly higher odds of ADHD diagnosis compared to those with fewer ACEs.

References 142-145.

Daycare

"Daycare raises salivary cortisol levels in children. The studies show, meaning those babies are put into stressful states at a very young age when their brains are developing, daycare has been known to increase aggression and anxiety and behavioral problems in school in the school years, and those children are more likely to develop attachment disorders."

Children in daycare often experience higher cortisol levels compared to when they are at home, with a significant increase observed from morning to afternoon, but only in daycare settings. This rise in cortisol is particularly pronounced in younger children, especially those under 36 months, and is linked to the stress of group interactions. Elevated cortisol levels in daycare have been associated with aggressive and anxious behaviours, with boys tending to show more aggression and girls more anxiety. However, secure attachments to caregivers and high-quality daycare environments can help buffer these stress responses, potentially reducing the risk of behavioural issues. Additionally, the transition to daycare can impact attachment security, with securely attached infants showing lower cortisol levels during the adaptation phase.

References 146-152.

Father's sensitivity

"fathers are not sensitive empathic nurtures, because it's against their evolutionary instinct"

Research challenges the misconception that fathers lack empathy and nurturing instincts. When responding to infant cues, fathers activate brain regions involved in both emotional processing and social cognition, with increased caregiving experience strengthening these connections. Brain plasticity plays a key role, allowing fathers to develop stronger bonds with their children over time. The concept of "responsive masculinity" suggests that fatherhood has evolved not just as a provider role but as an adaptive trait that supports caregiving and emotional engagement. These findings challenge previous evolutionary views on paternal empathy, emphasising the biological foundation of involved fatherhood.

References 42, 153-157.

Same-sex parenting

"You cannot have two fathers for a child, a child needs a mother and a father. If you're going to have two men, then one of them has to play that sensitive, empathic role, the other has to play the playful, tactile stimulation role. Same with two women who are raising children. It's better to have a father and a mother than two mothers."

Although same-sex parents, particularly female couples, often report higher levels of parenting stress, this does not negatively affect their children. Research shows that family relationship quality and child outcomes are equally positive in same-sex and different-sex parent households (158). Notably, same-sex parents—especially women—tend to spend more time engaged in child-focused activities, which may further support child development (159).

Academically, children raised by same-sex parents often outperform their peers from different-sex parent households. Studies from the Netherlands reveal that these children achieve higher standardised test scores, excel in primary and secondary education, and have higher high school graduation and college enrolment rates (160, 161, 162).

Furthermore, meta-analyses and broader studies indicate no significant differences in psychological adjustment, cognitive abilities, or gender identity between children of same-sex and different-sex parents (163, 164). According to current research, it seems the gender of parents correlates with parent-child relationships but is not crucial for children's psychological and social outcomes (165). However, there is still a need for high-quality research on same-sex families, particularly those with gay fathers (166).

Children socialising before the age of three

"No, children don't need socialization before three unless they're mothers with them."

There is very limited research on the importance (or lack thereof) of social interactions between infants. The current available research found that infants' preference for social interactions increases from 7 to 13 months, indicating a natural inclination towards engaging with others, including peers. This preference is linked to developments in their social attention behaviours. Between 9 and 13 months, they begin to explore and imitate other babies, which includes cooperative play and social use of materials. This period also marks the beginning of more complex social interactions, such as cooperation and imitation, which are important for social learning.

References 167-169.

Abusive fathers

"If a father was abusive to a little girl, then you know that little girl may do what we call a neurotic repetition, which is she seeks out abusive men because that's the only kind of love that she knew"

The research highlights a concerning pattern where daughters of abusive fathers are at increased risk of choosing abusive partners. This is influenced by the intergenerational transmission of abuse, attachment issues, and the normalisation of violence.

References 170-174.

Trends in male sexual activity

"I was looking at some stats earlier on that said there's been increased sexual inactivity amongst young men, which is an interesting stat. It's risen to almost 31% of men between the ages of 18 and 24 reporting no sexual activity in the past year. So that's almost doubled in a in about the space of 18 years."

Reference 175.

Mental health of young men

"Men account for nearly 80% of all suicides in the US, rate observed among 45 to 64 year olds. Globally, suicide is the leading cause of death amongst young men. And a survey conductor in the UK found that an increasing amount of men feel hopeless and worthless and that are struggling with finding meaning and purpose in the world."

References 176-178.

Relationship preference and education level

"studies show that men will marry at their educational level or below. Women will only marry at their educational level or above. And by diminishing men so much in terms of our education and professions, we've basically taken men's purpose away."

Recent research shows that women with higher education levels are more likely to form relationships with less educated men rather than staying single. Meanwhile, women with moderate education levels are less likely to form relationships with highly educated men. For men, there is no indication that they have a greater tendency to partner with highly educated women.

References 179-181.

Testosterone levels during fatherhood

"I've read so many stats around men's testosterone dropping when they become fathers."

"there was a longitudinal study done in the Philippines that followed 624 men over almost five years and found that those who became fathers experienced a significant decline in testosterone levels. Specifically, newly partnered fathers had a medium decrease of almost 30% in morning testosterone and 35 evening testosterone, which was significantly greater than the declines observed in single non fathers. Moreover, fathers who reported spending three or more hours daily in childcare, had lower testosterone levels compared to those less involved in caregiving. And there's also an impact on co sleeping, where research indicates that fathers who co sleep with their children exhibit lower testosterone levels than those who do not. This suggests that close proximity during sleep may further influence hormonal changes associated with parental caregiving."

A longitudinal study in the Philippines found that men with higher testosterone were more likely to become fathers but experienced significant declines in testosterone after fatherhood (182). This decrease was greater for fathers involved in childcare. Similar findings were reported in a Canadian study, where expectant fathers had lower testosterone levels compared to non-father controls (183). These hormonal changes may reflect a shift from mating to parenting effort, as seen in other species where males care for offspring (184).

Increased dopamine sensitivity in adolescents

"there was some research to show that technology raises a dopamine in an adolescent's brain tenfold to that of of so in other words, it would be like if you smoked a joint, it would, you know, make you high. If an adolescent smoked the same joint, it would make them 10 times higher. It has to do with the the sensitivity of the brain to dopamine and the lack of regulation."

Adolescence is a critical period characterised by heightened dopamine sensitivity and reward-seeking behaviour, which can increase vulnerability to substance abuse and psychiatric disorders (185, 186).

References

- Gilmore, J., Knickmeyer, R., & Gao, W. (2018). Imaging structural and functional brain development in early childhood. Nature Reviews Neuroscience, 19, 123-137. https://doi.org/10.1038/nrn.2018.1.
- 2. Thompson, R. (2001). Development in the first years of life. The Future of children, 11 1, 20-33.
- 3. Caviness, V., Kennedy, D., Richelme, C., Rademacher, J., & Filipek, P. (1996). The human brain age 7-11 years: a volumetric analysis based on magnetic resonance images.. Cerebral cortex, 6 5, 726-36.
- 4. Cao, M., Huang, H., & He, Y. (2017). Developmental Connectomics from Infancy through Early Childhood. Trends in Neurosciences, 40, 494-506.
- 5. <u>Lebel, C., & Beaulieu, C. (2011). Longitudinal Development of Human Brain Wiring Continues</u> from Childhood into Adulthood. The Journal of Neuroscience, 31, 10937 10947.
- 6. McCarthy, M. (2013). Mental disorders common among US children, CDC says. BMJ: British Medical Journal, 346.
- Bitsko, R. H., Claussen, A. H., Lichstein, J., Black, L. I., Jones, S. E., Danielson, M. L., Hoenig, J. M., Davis Jack, S. P., Brody, D. J., Gyawali, S., Maenner, M. J., Warner, M., Holland, K. M., Perou, R., Crosby, A. E., Blumberg, S. J., Avenevoli, S., Kaminski, J. W., Ghandour, R. M., & Contributor (2022). Mental Health Surveillance Among Children United States, 2013-2019. MMWR supplements, 71(2), 1–42.
- 8. Houtrow, A., & Okumura, M. (2011). Pediatric mental health problems and associated burden on families. Vulnerable Children and Youth Studies, 6, 222 233.
- 9. Sahakian, B., Malloch, G., & Kennard, C. (2010). A UK strategy for mental health and wellbeing. The Lancet, 375, 1854-1855.
- 10. Macgregor, J., & Kirwan, J. (2013). Depression in young people. Nursing Standard (Royal College of Nursing (Great Britain): 1987), 28 10, 18.
- 11. Deighton, J., Lereya, S., Casey, P., Patalay, P., Humphrey, N., & Wolpert, M. (2019). Prevalence of mental health problems in schools: poverty and other risk factors among 28 000 adolescents in England. The British Journal of Psychiatry, 215, 565 567...

- 12. Ford, T., & McManus, S. (2019). Prevalence: are two-fifths of young people really 'abnormal'?. The British Journal of Psychiatry, 216, 58 58.
- 13. <u>Ionio, C., Ciuffo, G., & Landoni, M. (2021). Parent–Infant Skin-to-Skin Contact and Stress</u>

 <u>Regulation: A Systematic Review of the Literature. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 18.</u>
- 14. <u>Durmaz, A., Sezici, E., & Akkaya, D. (2023)</u>. The effect of kangaroo mother care or skin-to-skin contact on infant vital signs: A systematic review and meta-analysis. Midwifery, 125, 103771.
- 15. Anisfeld, E., Casper, V., Nozyce, M., & Cunningham, N. (1990). Does infant carrying promote attachment? An experimental study of the effects of increased physical contact on the development of attachment.. Child development, 61 5, 1617-27.
- Williams, L., & Turner, P. (2019). Infant carrying as a tool to promote secure attachments in young mothers: Comparing intervention and control infants during the still-face paradigm... Infant behavior & development, 58, 101413.
- 17. Norholt, H. (2020). Revisiting the roots of attachment: A review of the biological and psychological effects of maternal skin-to-skin contact and carrying of full-term infants.. Infant behavior & development, 60, 101441.
- Moore, E., Bergman, N., Anderson, G., & Medley, N. (2016). Early skin-to-skin contact for mothers and their healthy newborn infants.. The Cochrane database of systematic reviews, 3, CD003519.
- 19. Bornstein, M. H., Suwalsky, J. T., & Breakstone, D. A. (2012). Emotional relationships between mothers and infants: knowns, unknowns, and unknown unknowns. Development and psychopathology, 24(1), 113–123.
- Creeth, H., McNamara, G., Tunster, S., Boque-Sastre, R., Allen, B., Sumption, L., Eddy, J., Isles, A., & John, R. (2018). Maternal care boosted by paternal imprinting in mammals. PLoS Biology, 16..
- 21. <u>Feldman, R., & Bakermans-Kranenburg, M. (2017). Oxytocin: a parenting hormone.. Current opinion in psychology, 15, 13-18.</u>
- 22. Wynne-Edwards, K. (2010). Parental Behavior and Hormones in Mammals., 657-663.

- 23. Rilling, J., & Mascaro, J. (2017). The neurobiology of fatherhood.. Current opinion in psychology, 15, 26-32.
- 24. Saltzman, W., & Ziegler, T. (2014). Functional Significance of Hormonal Changes in Mammalian Fathers. Journal of Neuroendocrinology, 26.
- 25. <u>DePasquale, C., & Gunnar, M. (2020)</u>. <u>Parental sensitivity and Nurturance. The Future of Children, 30, 53 70.</u>
- 26. Rilling, J. (2013). The neural and hormonal bases of human parentalcare. Neuropsychologia, 51, 731-747.
- 27. Orlitsky, T., Davidov, M., Paz, Y., Roth-Hanania, R., Berger, M., Yizhar, L., Shiller, L., & Zahn-Waxler, C. (2024). Which Aspects of Parenting Predict the Development of Empathic Concern During Infancy?. Developmental science, e13566.
- 28. Blasberg, J., Jost, J., Kanske, P., & Engert, V. (2023). Empathic stress in the mother-child dyad:

 Multimodal evidence for empathic stress in children observing their mothers during direct stress exposure.. Journal of experimental psychology. General.
- 29. Burkhouse, K., & Kujawa, A. (2022). Annual Research Review: Emotion processing in offspring of mothers with depression diagnoses a systematic review of neural and physiological research.. Journal of child psychology and psychiatry, and allied disciplines.
- 30. Thomas, J., Letourneau, N., Campbell, T., Tomfohr-Madsen, L., & Giesbrecht, G. (2017).
 Developmental Origins of Infant Emotion Regulation: Mediation by Temperamental
 Negativity and Moderation by Maternal Sensitivity. Developmental Psychology, 53, 611–628.
- 31. Manian, N., & Bornstein, M. (2009). Dynamics of emotion regulation in infants of clinically depressed and nondepressed mothers.. Journal of child psychology and psychiatry, and allied disciplines, 50 11, 1410-8.
- 32. Moberg, K., Ekström-Bergström, A., Buckley, S., Massarotti, C., Pajalić, Z., Luegmair, K., Kotlowska, A., Lengler, L., Olza, I., Grylka-Baeschlin, S., Leahy-Warren, P., Hadjigeorgiu, E., Villarmea, S., & Dencker, A. (2020). Maternal plasma levels of oxytocin during breastfeeding—A systematic review. PLoS ONE, 15.
- 33. Olivová, J. (2021). Effect of oxytocin and cortisol levels on mother—infant bonding. Global Journal of Psychology Research: New Trends and Issues.

- 34. Scatliffe, N., Casavant, S., Vittner, D., & Cong, X. (2019). Oxytocin and early parent-infant interactions: A systematic review. International Journal of Nursing Sciences, 6, 445 453...
- 35. Chiron, C., Jambaqué, I., Nabbout, R., Lounes, R., Syrota, A., & Dulac, O. (1997). The right brain hemisphere is dominant in human infants. Brain: a journal of neurology, 120 (Pt 6), 1057-65.
- 36. Thatcher, R., Walker, R.A., & Giudice, S. (1987). Human cerebral hemispheres develop at different rates and ages. Science, 236 4805, 1110-3.
- 37. <u>Vohra, S. (2018)</u>. <u>Building an Interdisciplinary Rural Coalition to Research and Improve Baby</u>
 <u>Brain Development. Pediatrics.</u>
- 38. Brandel, M., Kamel, G., Carbulido, K., Belza, C., Modi, R., McKee, R., Cronin, B., Ewing, E., Lance, S., & Gosman, A. (2022). Intracranial Volumes of Healthy Children in the First 3 Years of Life: An Analysis of 270 Magnetic Resonance Imaging Scans. Plastic and Reconstructive Surgery, 150, 136e 144e.
- 39. Matsuzawa, J., Matsui, M., Konishi, T., Noguchi, K., Gur, R., Bilker, W., & Miyawaki, T. (2001).

 Age-related volumetric changes of brain gray and white matter in healthy infants and children.. Cerebral cortex, 11 4, 335-42.
- 40. Atzil, S., Hendler, T., Zagoory-Sharon, O., Winetraub, Y., & Feldman, R. (2012). Synchrony and specificity in the maternal and the paternal brain: relations to oxytocin and vasopressin.

 Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 51 8, 798-811.
- 41. Ferris, C.F. (2005). Vasopressin/oxytocin and aggression. Novartis Foundation symposium, 268, 190-8; discussion 198-200, 242-53.
- 42. Abraham, E., Hendler, T., Shapira-Lichter, I., Kanat-Maymon, Y., Zagoory-Sharon, O., & Feldman, R. (2014). Father's brain is sensitive to childcare experiences. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America, 111(27), 9792–9797.
- 43. Nishitani, S., Ikematsu, K., Takamura, T., Honda, S., Yoshiura, K., & Shinohara, K. (2017).

 Genetic variants in oxytocin receptor and arginine-vasopressin receptor 1A are associated with the neural correlates of maternal and paternal affection towards their child. Hormones and Behavior, 87, 47-56.

- 44. Ito, J., Fujiwara, T., Monden, Y., Yamagata, T., & Ohira, H. (2017). Association of Oxytocin and Parental Prefrontal Activation during Reunion with Infant: A Functional Near-Infrared Spectroscopy Study. Frontiers in pediatrics, 5, 271.
- 45. Paquette, D. (2004). Theorizing the Father-Child Relationship: Mechanisms and Developmental Outcomes. Human Development, 47, 193 219.
- 46. Creighton, G., Brussoni, M., Oliffe, J., & Olsen, L. (2017). "It's Good for the Kids": Fathers

 Consider Risk and Protection in Their Own and Their Children's Lives. Journal of Family

 Issues, 38, 1043 1065.
- 47. Brussoni, M., & Olsen, L. (2011). Striking a Balance Between Risk and Protection: Fathers' Attitudes and Practices Toward Child Injury Prevention. Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics, 32, 491-498.
- 48. Chang, L., Schwartz, D., Dodge, K., & McBride-Chang, C. (2003). Harsh parenting in relation to child emotion regulation and aggression.. Journal of family psychology: JFP: journal of the Division of Family Psychology of the American Psychological Association, 17 4, 598-606.
- 49. Endendijk, J., Groeneveld, M., Van Der Pol, L., Van Berkel, S., Hallers-Haalboom, E., Bakermans-Kranenburg, M., & Mesman, J. (2017). Gender Differences in Child Aggression: Relations With Gender-Differentiated Parenting and Parents' Gender-Role Stereotypes.. Child development, 88 1, 299-316 ..
- 50. <u>Gustafsson, E., Levréro, F., Reby, D., & Mathevon, N. (2013). Fathers are just as good as mothers at recognizing the cries of their baby. Nature communications, 4, 1698.</u>
- 51. <u>Vermillet, A., Skewes, J.C., & Parsons, C.E. (2025). Men and women's waking patterns to infant crying: Preparenthood differences are insufficient to explain uneven sharing of nighttime care. Emotion.</u>
- 52. Setoh, P., & Esposito, G. (2019). What Men Do When a Baby Cries: Increasing Testosterone May Lead to Less Nurturant Care but More Environmental Vigilance. Parenting, 19(1–2), 62–64.
- 53. Fleming, A.S., Corter, C.M., Stallings, J.F., & Steiner, M. (2002). Testosterone and Prolactin Are Associated with Emotional Responses to Infant Cries in New Fathers. Hormones and Behavior, 42, 399-413.

- 54. Florsheim, P., Tolan, P.H., & Gorman-Smith, D. (1998). Family relationships, parenting practices, the availability of male family members, and the behavior of inner-city boys in single-mother and two-parent families. Child development, 69 5, 1437-47.
- 55. Ganesha, & Venkatesan, S. (2012). Comparative Profiles of Problem Behaviors in Children from Single Versus Dual Parent Families. Journal of Psychology, 3, 89 98.
- 56. Carbonneau, R., Tremblay, R.E., Vitaro, F., Dobkin, P.L., Saucier, J.F., & Pihl, R.O. (1998).

 Paternal alcoholism, paternal absence and the development of problem behaviors in boys
 from age six to twelve years. Journal of studies on alcohol, 59 4, 387-98.
- 57. Maccallum, F., & Golombok, S.E. (2004). Children raised in fatherless families from infancy: a follow-up of children of lesbian and single heterosexual mothers at early adolescence.

 Journal of child psychology and psychiatry, and allied disciplines, 45 8, 1407-19.
- 58. <u>Dujardin, A., Santens, T., Braet, C., De Raedt, R., Vos, P., Maes, B., & Bosmans, G. (2016).</u>
 <u>Middle Childhood Support-Seeking Behavior During Stress: Links With Self-Reported</u>
 <u>Attachment and Future Depressive Symptoms.. Child development, 87 1, 326-40.</u>
- Spruit, A., Goos, L., Weenink, N., Rodenburg, R., Niemeyer, H., Stams, G., & Colonnesi, C.
 (2019). The Relation Between Attachment and Depression in Children and Adolescents: A
 Multilevel Meta-Analysis. Clinical Child and Family Psychology Review, 23, 54 69.
- Colonnesi, C., Draijer, E.M., Jan J M Stams, G., van der Bruggen, C.O., Bögels, S.M., & Noom, M.J. (2011). The Relation Between Insecure Attachment and Child Anxiety: A Meta-Analytic Review. Journal of Clinical Child & Adolescent Psychology, 40, 630 - 645.
- 61. Schimmenti, A., & Bifulco, A. (2015). Linking lack of care in childhood to anxiety disorders in emerging adulthood: the role of attachment styles. Child and adolescent mental health, 20 1. 41-48.
- 62. Warren, S.L., Huston, L., Egeland, B., & Sroufe, L.A. (1997). Child and adolescent anxiety disorders and early attachment. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 36 5, 637-44.
- 63. <u>Holmes, J. (2004)</u>. <u>Disorganized attachment and Borderline Personality Disorder: A clinical perspective</u>. <u>Attachment & Human Development</u>, 6, 181 190.
- 64. <u>Holmes, J. (2003)</u>. <u>Borderline Personality Disorder and the Search for Meaning: An Attachment Perspective</u>. <u>Australian and New Zealand Journal of Psychiatry</u>, 37, 524 531.

- 65. Lyons-Ruth, K., Bureau, J. F., Holmes, B., Easterbrooks, A., & Brooks, N. H. (2013). Borderline symptoms and suicidality/self-injury in late adolescence: prospectively observed relationship correlates in infancy and childhood. Psychiatry research, 206(2-3), 273–281
- 66. Cole-Detke, H., & Kobak, R. (1998). The effects of multiple abuse in interpersonal relationships: An attachment perspective. Journal of Aggression, Maltreatment & Trauma, 2, 189-205.
- 67. <u>Carlson, E.A. (1998)</u>. A prospective longitudinal study of attachment disorganization/disorientation. Child development, 69 4, 1107-28.
- 68. Waters, E., Merrick, S., Treboux, D., Crowell, J., & Albersheim, L. (2000). Attachment security in infancy and early adulthood: a twenty-year longitudinal study.. Child development, 71 3, 684-9.
- 69. Feeney, J.A., & Noller, P. (1990). Attachment Style as a Predictor of Adult Romantic Relationships. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 58, 281-291.
- 70. Serra, M., De Pisapia, N., Rigo, P., Papinutto, N., Jager, J., Bornstein, M.H., & Venuti, P. (2015). Secure attachment status is associated with white matter integrity in healthy young adults.

 NeuroReport, 26, 1106–1111.
- 71. <u>Bîgiu, N.F., Pandi, B., Dimienescu, O.G., Pascu, A.M., Şamotă, I., Pleş, L., & Moga, M.A.</u> (2015). <u>Maternal depletion syndrome.</u>
- 72. Winikoff, B., & Castle, M. A. (1993). Defining maternal depletion syndrome. American journal of public health, 83(7), 1052.
- 73. Winkvist, A., Rasmussen, K. M., & Habicht, J. P. (1992). A new definition of maternal depletion syndrome. American journal of public health, 82(5), 691–694.
- 74. R John Aitken, The changing tide of human fertility, Human Reproduction, Volume 37, Issue 4, April 2022, Pages 629–638
- 75. Aitken, J. 2023. The Decline and Fall of Human Fertility. Fertility & Reproduction 05(04), pp. 230–230.
- 76. Cobo, A.C., & García-Velasco, J.A. (2016). Why all women should freeze their eggs. Current Opinion in Obstetrics and Gynecology, 28, 206–210.

- 77. Song, B.B., & Quinn, M.M. (2023). Planned Oocyte Cryopreservation: A Review of Current Evidence on Outcomes, Safety and Risks. Obstetrics and gynecology clinics of North America, 50 4, 707-719.
- Jones, B. P., Saso, S., Mania, A., Smith, J. R., Serhal, P., & Ben Nagi, J. (2018). The dawn of a new ice age: social egg freezing. Acta obstetricia et gynecologica Scandinavica, 97(6), 641–647.
- 79. <u>Lincoln, L. (1984)</u>. Fathering and the separation-individuation process. Maternal-child nursing journal, 13 2, 103-12.
- 80. Harlow, H. F. (1958). The nature of love. American Psychologist, 13(12), 673–685.
- 81. C. Caldji, B. Tannenbaum, S. Sharma, D. Francis, P.M. Plotsky, & M.J. Meaney (1998).

 Maternal care during infancy regulates the development of neural systems mediating the expression of fearfulness in the rat, Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. U.S.A. 95 (9) 5335-5340.
- 82. Champagne, F. A., Francis, D. D., Mar, A., & Meaney, M. J. (2003). Variations in maternal care in the rat as a mediating influence for the effects of environment on development.

 Physiology & behavior, 79(3), 359–371.
- 83. <u>Gábos</u>, A. (2017) 'Hungary country note', in: Blum S., Koslowski A., and Moss P. (eds.) Review of Leave Policies and Research 2017.
- 84. Si. (2024, November 27). Work-life balance. Sweden.Se.
- 85. Waters, E., Merrick, S., Treboux, D., Crowell, J., & Albersheim, L. (2000). Attachment security in infancy and early adulthood: a twenty-year longitudinal study. Child development, 71(3), 684–689.
- 86. Waters, E., Brook, S.A., Treboux, D., Crowell, J.A., Merrick, S., & Albersheim, L. (1999).

 Attachment Security in Infancy and Early Adulthood: A 20-Year Longitudinal Study Everett

 Waters SUNY Stony Brook Dominique Treboux Judith Crowell.
- 87. Lewis, M., Feiring, C., & Rosenthal, S.F. (2000). Attachment over time. Child development, 71 3, 707-20.
- 88. Pinquart, M., Feußner, C., & Ahnert, L. (2013). Meta-analytic evidence for stability in attachments from infancy to early adulthood. Attachment & Human Development, 15, 189 218.

- 89. Herstell, S., Betz, L.T., Penzel, N., Chechelnizki, R., Filihagh, L., Antonucci, L.A., & Kambeitz, J. (2021). Insecure attachment as a transdiagnostic risk factor for major psychiatric conditions:

 A meta-analysis in bipolar disorder, depression and schizophrenia spectrum disorder. Journal of psychiatric research, 144, 190-201.
- 90. Palitsky, D., Mota, N.P., Afifi, T.O., Downs, A.C., & Sareen, J. (2013). The Association Between Adult Attachment Style, Mental Disorders, and Suicidality: Findings From a Population-Based Study. The Journal of Nervous and Mental Disease, 201, 579–586.
- 91. Sexton-Radek, K. (2013). Insomnia Symptom Presentation and Sleep Aids. Journal of sleep disorders and therapy, 2013.
- 92. Maust, D.T., Solway, E., Clark, S.J., Kirch, M., Singer, D.C., & Malani, P.N. (2019). Prescription and Nonprescription Sleep Product Use Among Older Adults in the United States. The American journal of geriatric psychiatry: official journal of the American Association for Geriatric Psychiatry, 27 1, 32-41.
- 93. Chong, Y., Fryer, C., & Gu, Q. (2013). Prescription sleep aid use among adults: United States. 2005-2010.. NCHS data brief, 127, 1-8.
- 94. Bitsko, R. H., Claussen, A. H., Lichstein, J., Black, L. I., Jones, S. E., Danielson, M. L., Hoenig, J. M., Davis Jack, S. P., Brody, D. J., Gyawali, S., Maenner, M. J., Warner, M., Holland, K. M., Perou, R., Crosby, A. E., Blumberg, S. J., Avenevoli, S., Kaminski, J. W., Ghandour, R. M., & Contributor (2022). Mental Health Surveillance Among Children United States, 2013-2019. MMWR supplements, 71(2), 1–42.
- 95. Chua, K., Volerman, A., Zhang, J., Hua, J., & Conti, R.M. (2024). Antidepressant Dispensing to US Adolescents and Young Adults: 2016-2022. Pediatrics.
- 96. Nelson, C., Jacobson, C. M., Weinberger, M. I., Bhaskaran, V., Rosenfeld, B., Breitbart, W., & Roth, A. J. (2009). The role of spirituality in the relationship between religiosity and depression in prostate cancer patients. Annals of behavioral medicine: a publication of the Society of Behavioral Medicine, 38(2), 105–114.
- 97. Reese, A.M., Thorpe, R.J., Bell, C.N., Bowie, J., & Laveist, T.A. (2012). The Effect of Religious Service Attendance on Race Differences in Depression: Findings from the EHDIC-SWB Study. Journal of Urban Health, 89, 510-518.

- 98. Maselko, J., Hayward, R. D., Hanlon, A., Buka, S., & Meador, K. (2012). Religious service attendance and major depression: a case of reverse causality?. American journal of epidemiology, 175(6), 576–583
- 99. Salicru, S. (2021). A Practical and Contemporary Model of Depression for Our Times—A Timeless Existential Clinician's Perspective. Open Journal of Depression.
- **100.** Mascaro, N. (2006). Longitudinal analysis of the relationship of existential meaning with depression and hope.
- 101. Brummelman, E., Thomaes, S., Overbeek, G., Orobio de Castro, B., van den Hout, M. A., & Bushman, B. J. (2014). On feeding those hungry for praise: person praise backfires in children with low self-esteem. Journal of experimental psychology. General, 143(1), 9–14.
- 102. Brummelman, E. and Sedikides, C. (2020), Raising Children With High Self-Esteem (But Not Narcissism). Child Dev Perspect, 14: 83-89.
- 103. Coppola, G., Musso, P., Buonanno, C., Semeraro, C., Iacobellis, B., Cassibba, R., Levantini, V., Masi, G., Thomaes, S., & Muratori, P. (2020). The Apple of Daddy's Eye: Parental Overvaluation Links the Narcissistic Traits of Father and Child. International journal of environmental research and public health, 17(15), 5515.
- 104. Cui, X. (2023). The Impact of Parenting on Later Development of the Narcissistic Trait. Journal of Education, Humanities and Social Sciences, 8, 181-186.
- 105. <u>Claudio L. Can Parenting Styles Affect the Children's Development of Narcissism? A Systematic Review . Open Psychology J. 2016; 9: .</u>
- 106. Danielson, M. L., Claussen, A. H., Bitsko, R. H., Katz, S. M., Newsome, K., Blumberg, S. J., ... Ghandour, R. (2024). ADHD Prevalence Among U.S. Children and Adolescents in 2022: Diagnosis, Severity, Co-Occurring Disorders, and Treatment. Journal of Clinical Child & Adolescent Psychology, 53(3), 343–360.
- 107. McKechnie, D. G. J., O'Nions, E., Dunsmuir, S., & Petersen, I. (2023). Attention-deficit hyperactivity disorder diagnoses and prescriptions in UK primary care, 2000–2018: population-based cohort study. BJPsych Open, 9(4), e121.
- 108. Significant rise in ADHD diagnoses in the UK | NIHR. (2025, February 26).

- 109. Salari, N., Ghasemi, H., Abdoli, N. et al. The global prevalence of ADHD in children and adolescents: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Ital J Pediatr 49, 48 (2023).
- 110. Thapar, A., Harrington, R., Ross, K., & McGuffin, P. (2000). Does the definition of ADHD affect heritability?. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 39 12, 1528-36.
- 111. <u>Demontis</u>, <u>D. et al (2018)</u>. <u>Discovery of the first genome-wide significant risk loci for attention deficit/hyperactivity disorder</u>. <u>Nature Genetics</u>, <u>51</u>, <u>63 75</u>.
- 112. Neale, B. et al. (2010). Meta-analysis of genome-wide association studies of attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder.. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 49 9, 884-97.
- 113. <u>Faraone, S., & Larsson, H. (2018)</u>. <u>Genetics of attention deficit hyperactivity disorder.</u>
 <u>Molecular Psychiatry, 24, 562 575.</u>
- 114. Freitag, C., Rohde, L., Lempp, T., & Romanos, M. (2010). Phenotypic and measurement influences on heritability estimates in childhood ADHD. European Child & Adolescent Psychiatry, 19, 311-323.
- 115. Brikell, I., Kuja-Halkola, R., & Larsson, H. (2015). Heritability of attention-deficit hyperactivity disorder in adults. American Journal of Medical Genetics Part B: Neuropsychiatric Genetics, 168, 406 413.
- 116. Borges, J., Leite, R., Almeida, M., Morais, S., & Madeira, N. (2021). Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder in adulthood and the heritability of this condition. European Psychiatry, 64, S616 S616.
- 117. <u>Brikell, I., Kuja-Halkola, R., & Larsson, H. (2015)</u>. <u>Heritability of attention-deficit hyperactivity disorder in adults</u>. <u>American Journal of Medical Genetics Part B: Neuropsychiatric Genetics</u>, 168, 406 413.
- 118. Lohoff F. W. (2010). Overview of the genetics of major depressive disorder. Current psychiatry reports, 12(6), 539–546.
- 119. Dunn, E.C., Brown, R.C., Dai, Y., Rosand, J., Nugent, N.R., Amstadter, A.B., & Smoller, J.W. (2015). Genetic Determinants of Depression: Recent Findings and Future Directions. Harvard Review of Psychiatry, 23, 1–18.

- 120. Shadrina, M., Bondarenko, E., & Slominsky, P. (2018). Genetics Factors in Major Depression Disease. Frontiers in Psychiatry, 9.
- 121. Kendall, K., Assche, E., Andlauer, T., Choi, K., Luykx, J., Schulte, E., & Lu, Y. (2021). The genetic basis of major depression. Psychological Medicine, 51, 2217 2230.
- 122. Levinson, D. (2006). The Genetics of Depression: A Review. Biological Psychiatry, 60, 84-92.
- 123. Mullins, N., & Lewis, C. (2017). Genetics of Depression: Progress at Last. Current Psychiatry Reports, 19.
- **124.** Wray, N., Ripkeet et al. (2017). Genome-wide association analyses identify 44 risk variants and refine the genetic architecture of major depression. Nature Genetics, 50, 668 681.
- 125. Howard, D. et al. (2019). Genome-wide meta-analysis of depression identifies 102 independent variants and highlights the importance of the prefrontal brain regions. Nature Neuroscience, 22, 343 - 352.
- **126.** Purves, K., Coleman et al. (2019). A major role for common genetic variation in anxiety disorders. Molecular Psychiatry, 25, 3292 3303.
- 127. Meier, S., Trontti et al. (2019). Genetic Variants Associated With Anxiety and Stress-Related Disorders: A Genome-Wide Association Study and Mouse-Model Study. JAMA psychiatry.
- 128. <u>Domschke, K., & Deckert, J. (2012). Genetics of anxiety disorders status quo and quo vadis.</u>

 Current pharmaceutical design, 18 35, 5691-8.
- 129. Meier, S., & Deckert, J. (2019). Genetics of Anxiety Disorders. Current Psychiatry Reports, 21, 1-8..
- 130. Gross, C., & Hen, R. (2004). The developmental origins of anxiety. Nature Reviews Neuroscience, 5, 545-552.
- 131. Fox, A., Oler, J., Shackman, A., Shelton, S., Raveendran, M., McKay, D., Converse, A., Alexander, A., Davidson, R., Blangero, J., Rogers, J., & Kalin, N. (2015). Intergenerational neural mediators of early-life anxious temperament. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, 112, 9118 - 9122.
- 132. Raz, S., & Leykin, D. (2015). Psychological and cortisol reactivity to experimentally induced stress in adults with ADHD. Psychoneuroendocrinology, 60, 7-17.

- 133. Combs, M. A., Canu, W. H., Broman-Fulks, J. J., Rocheleau, C. A., & Nieman, D. C. (2015).

 Perceived stress and ADHD symptoms in adults. Journal of attention disorders, 19(5),
 425–434.
- 134. Hirvikoski, T., Lindholm, T., Nordenström, A., Nordström, A., & Lajic, S. (2009). High self-perceived stress and many stressors, but normal diurnal cortisol rhythm, in adults with ADHD (attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder). Hormones and Behavior, 55, 418-424.
- 135. Bryant, A., Schlesinger, H., Sideri, A., Holmes, J., Buitelaar, J., & Meiser-Stedman, R. (2023). A meta-analytic review of the impact of ADHD medications on anxiety and depression in children and adolescents. European Child & Adolescent Psychiatry, 32(10), 1885–1898.
- 136. Fletcher, M., Ledbetter, L., Alonso, P., Ansah, O.O., Short, O., & Reuter-Rice, K. (2025). Does age of ADHD medication initiation predict long-term risk of anxiety? A scoping review. PLOS Mental Health.
- 137. Vance, A., Luk, E.S., Costin, J., Tonge, B.J., & Pantelis, C. (1999). Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder: Anxiety Phenomena in Children Treated with Psychostimulant Medication for 6 Months or More. Australian and New Zealand Journal of Psychiatry, 33, 399 - 406.
- 138. Negrao, B. L., & Viljoen, M. (2011). Stimulants and growth in children with attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder. Medical hypotheses, 77(1), 21–28.
- 139. Charach, A., Figueroa, M., Chen, S.X., Ickowicz, A., & Schachar, R.J. (2006). Stimulant treatment over 5 years: effects on growth. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 45 4, 415-21.
- 140. Charach, A., Figueroa, M., Chen, S., Ickowicz, A., & Schachar, R. (2006). Stimulant treatment over 5 years: effects on growth. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 45(4), 415–421.
- 141. Correll, C.U., & Carlson, H. (2006). Endocrine and metabolic adverse effects of psychotropic medications in children and adolescents. Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 45 7, 771-91.
- 142. Crouch, E.L., Radcliff, E., Bennett, K.J., Brown, M., & Hung, P. (2021). Examining the relationship between adverse childhood experiences and ADHD diagnosis and severity. Academic pediatrics.

- 143. Brown, N.M., Brown, S.N., Briggs, R.D., Germán, M., Belamarich, P.F., & Oyeku, S.O. (2017).
 Associations Between Adverse Childhood Experiences and ADHD Diagnosis and Severity.
 Academic pediatrics, 17 4, 349-355.
- 144. Boswell, E., Crouch, E., Odahowski, C., & Hung, P. (2025). Examining the Association Between Adverse Childhood Experiences and ADHD in School-Aged Children Following the COVID-19 Pandemic. Journal of attention disorders, 29(1), 42–52.
- 145. Schickedanz, A., Halfon, N., Sastry, N., & Chung, P. J. (2018). Parents' Adverse Childhood

 Experiences and Their Children's Behavioral Health Problems. Pediatrics, 142(2), e20180023.
- 146. Dettling, A., Gunnar, M., & Donzella, B. (1999). Cortisol levels of young children in full-day childcare centers: relations with age and temperament. Psychoneuroendocrinology, 24, 519-536.
- 147. Gunnar, M., Kryzer, E., Van Ryzin, M., & Phillips, D. (2010). The rise in cortisol in family day care: associations with aspects of care quality, child behavior, and child sex.. Child development, 81 3, 851-69.
- 148. <u>Vermeer, H., & Van IJzendoorn, M. (2006)</u>. <u>Children's elevated cortisol levels at daycare: A review and meta-analysis</u>. <u>Early Childhood Research Quarterly, 21, 390-401</u>.
- 149. <u>Geoffroy, M., Côté, S., Parent, S., & Séguin, J. (2006)</u>. <u>Daycare Attendance, Stress, and Mental</u> Health. The Canadian Journal of Psychiatry, 51, 607 615..
- 150. <u>Hatfield, B., & Williford, A. (2016)</u>. <u>Cortisol Patterns for Young Children Displaying Disruptive</u>

 <u>Behavior: Links to a Teacher-Child, Relationship-Focused Intervention. Prevention Science,</u>

 18, 40-49.
- 151. <u>Badanes</u>, L., <u>Dmitrieva</u>, J., & <u>Watamura</u>, S. (2012). <u>Understanding Cortisol Reactivity across</u>

 the Day at Child Care: The Potential Buffering Role of Secure Attachments to Caregivers..

 Early childhood research quarterly, 27 1, 156-165.
- 152. Ahnert, L., Gunnar, M., Lamb, M., & Barthel, M. (2004). Transition to child care: associations with infant-mother attachment, infant negative emotion, and cortisol elevations.. Child development, 75 3, 639-50.
- 153. Rilling, J.K., & Mascaro, J.S. (2017). The neurobiology of fatherhood. Current opinion in psychology, 15, 26-32.

- 154. Brown, B. (2019). From Hegemonic to Responsive Masculinity: The Transformative Power of the Provider Role. In: Barry, J.A., Kingerlee, R., Seager, M., Sullivan, L. (eds) The Palgrave Handbook of Male Psychology and Mental Health. Palgrave Macmillan, Cham.
- 155. Giannotti, M., Gemignani, M., Rigo, P., Venuti, P., & De Falco, S. (2022). The Role of Paternal Involvement on Behavioral Sensitive Responses and Neurobiological Activations in Fathers: A Systematic Review. Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience, 16.
- 156. Li, T., Horta, M., Mascaro, J. S., Bijanki, K., Arnal, L. H., Adams, M., Barr, R. G., & Rilling, J. K. (2018). Explaining individual variation in paternal brain responses to infant cries. Physiology & behavior, 193(Pt A), 43–54.
- 157. Khoddam, H., Goldenberg, D., Stoycos, S. A., Horton, K. T., Marshall, N., Cárdenas, S. I., Kaplan, J., & Saxbe, D. (2020). How do expectant fathers respond to infant cry? Examining brain and behavioral responses and the moderating role of testosterone. Social cognitive and affective neuroscience, 15(4), 437–446.
- 158. Bos, H., Knox, J., Van Rijn-Van Gelderen, L., & Gartrell, N. (2016). Same-Sex and Different-Sex

 Parent Households and Child Health Outcomes: Findings from the National Survey of

 Children's Health. Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics, 37, 179–187.
- 159. Prickett, K., Martin-Storey, A., & Crosnoe, R. (2015). A Research Note on Time With Children in Different- and Same-Sex Two-Parent Families. Demography, 52, 905-918.
- 160. Mazrekaj, D., De Witte, K., & Cabus, S. (2020). School Outcomes of Children Raised by Same-Sex Parents: Evidence from Administrative Panel Data. American Sociological Review, 85, 830 - 856.
- 161. Kabátek, J., & Perales, F. (2021). Academic Achievement of Children in Same- and <u>Different-Sex-Parented Families: A Population-Level Analysis of Linked Administrative Data</u> From the Netherlands.. Demography, 58 2, 393-418.
- 162. Mazrekaj, D., Fischer, M., & Bos, H. (2022). Behavioral Outcomes of Children with Same-Sex

 Parents in The Netherlands. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public

 Health, 19..
- 163. Fedewa, A., Black, W., & Ahn, S. (2015). Children and Adolescents With Same-Gender

 Parents: A Meta-Analytic Approach in Assessing Outcomes. Journal of GLBT Family Studies,

 11, 1 34.

- 164. Suárez, M., Stackhouse, E., Keese, J., & Thompson, C. (2022). A meta-analysis examining the relationship between parents' sexual orientation and children's developmental outcomes.
 Journal of Family Studies, 29, 1584 1605.
- 165. <u>Biblarz, T., & Stacey, J. (2010)</u>. How Does the Gender of Parents Matter. Journal of Marriage and Family, 72, 3-22.
- 166. Schumm, W. R. (2016). A Review and Critique of Research on Same-Sex Parenting and Adoption. Psychological Reports, 119(3), 641-760.
- 167. Thiele, M., Hepach, R., Michel, C., & Haun, D. (2021). Infants' Preference for Social Interactions Increases from 7 to 13 Months of Age.. Child development..
- 168. <u>Haas, M., & Harms, I. (1963)</u>. <u>Social interaction between infants</u>.. <u>Child development</u>, <u>34</u>, <u>79-97</u>..
- 169. <u>Kudrnova, V., Spelke, E., & Thomas, A. (2024)</u>. <u>Infants Infer Social Relationships Between</u>
 <u>Individuals Who Engage in Imitative Social Interactions</u>. <u>Open Mind</u>: <u>Discoveries in Cognitive Science</u>, <u>8, 202 216</u>..
- 170. Salisbury, E., Henning, K., & Holdford, R. (2009). Fathering by Partner-Abusive Men. Child Maltreatment, 14, 232 242..
- 171. Mccloskey, L. (2013). The intergenerational transfer of mother-daughter risk for gender-based abuse.. Psychodynamic psychiatry, 41 2, 303-28.
- 172. Parker, H., & Parker, S. (1986). Father-daughter sexual abuse: an emerging perspective.. The American journal of orthopsychiatry, 56 4, 531-549
- 173. Shakoor, S., Theobald, D., & Farrington, D. P. (2022). Intergenerational Continuity of Intimate

 Partner Violence Perpetration: An Investigation of Possible Mechanisms. Journal of
 interpersonal violence, 37(7-8), NP5208–NP5227.
- 174. <u>Hall, S.S.</u> (2009). <u>Paternal Influences on Daughters' Heterosexual Relationship Socialization:</u>
 <u>Attachment Style and Disposition toward Marriage. International Symposium on Field and Service Robotics.</u>
- 175. <u>Ueda, P., Mercer, C. H., Ghaznavi, C., & Herbenick, D. (2020)</u>. <u>Trends in Frequency of Sexual Activity and Number of Sexual Partners Among Adults Aged 18 to 44 Years in the US.</u>
 2000-2018. JAMA network open, 3(6), e203833.

- 176. Caine, E.D. (2015). Suicide and Social Processes. JAMA psychiatry, 72 10, 965-7.
- 177. Hempstead, K., & Phillips, J.A. (2015). Rising suicide among adults aged 40-64 years: the role of job and financial circumstances. American journal of preventive medicine, 48 5, 491-500.
- 178. Soares, J., Macassa, G., Grossi, G., & Viitasara, E. (2008). Psychosocial Correlates of Hopelessness Among Men. Cognitive Behaviour Therapy, 37, 50 61..
- 179. Jonason, P., & Antoon, C. (2019). Mate preferences for educated partners: Similarities and differences in the sexes depend on mating context. Personality and Individual Differences...
- 180. De Hauw, Y., Grow, A., & Van Bavel, J. (2017). The Reversed Gender Gap in Education and Assortative Mating in Europe. European Journal of Population, 33, 445 474.
- 181. Neyt, B., Vandenbulcke, S., & Baert, S. (2019). Are men intimidated by highly educated women? Undercover on Tinder. Economics of Education Review, 73, 101914.
- 182. Gettler, L. T., McDade, T. W., Feranil, A. B., & Kuzawa, C. W. (2011). Longitudinal evidence that fatherhood decreases testosterone in human males. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America, 108(39), 16194–16199.
- 183. Berg, S.J., & Wynne-Edwards, K.E. (2001). Changes in testosterone, cortisol, and estradiol levels in men becoming fathers. Mayo Clinic proceedings, 76 6, 582-92.
- 184. Gray P. B. (2011). The descent of a man's testosterone. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America, 108(39), 16141–16142.
- 185. Pitts, E. G., Stowe, T. A., Christensen, B. A., & Ferris, M. J. (2020). Comparing dopamine release, uptake, and D2 autoreceptor function across the ventromedial to dorsolateral teamstriatum in adolescent and adult male and female rats. Neuropharmacology, 175, 108163.
- 186. Telzer E. H. (2016). Dopaminergic reward sensitivity can promote adolescent health: A new perspective on the mechanism of ventral striatum activation. Developmental cognitive neuroscience, 17, 57–67.